
 
  

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE  

NASHVILLE DIVISION  
 

   
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,   Case No. ____________  
   
 Plaintiff,  COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT  
 INJUNCTION, MONETARY 
 v.  RELIEF, AND OTHER RELIEF  
  
TRAFFIC AND FUNNELS, LLC, a limited   
liability company;   
  
WE  CAPITAL, LLC, a limited liability company,   
also  d/b/a The Sales Mentor  and  The Sales   
Mentor, LLC;   
  
EVANS AND WELCH,  INC., a corporation;   
  
EVANS AND WELCH HOLDINGS, LLC, a  
limited liability company;  
 
TAYLOR A. WELCH, individually and as an 
officer of Traffic and Funnels, LLC; WE Capital,  
LLC; Evans and Welch, Inc.; and Evans  and 
Welch Holdings, LLC;   
 
CHRISTOPHER A. EVANS, individually and as  
an officer of Traffic and Funnels, LLC; WE  
Capital, LLC; Evans and Welch, Inc.; and Evans  
and Welch Holdings, LLC;   
 
PAYTON WELCH, individually; and  
 
ASHTON SHANKS, individually and as an 
officer of Evans  and Welch, Inc.,  
 
Defendants.  

 
 
 Plaintiff,  the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”),  for its Complaint alleges:  

1.  The FTC  brings this action under Sections 13(b)  and 19 of the  FTC Act, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 53( b), 57b, and the  



 
  

   

 

    

  

 

 

 

    

 

 

   

   

  

   

   

  

  

 

 

(“Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101-6108, which authorize the FTC to seek, and the Court 

to order, permanent injunctive relief, monetary relief, and other relief for Defendants’ acts or 

practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and the FTC’s 

Telemarketing Sales Rule (“TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, and that the Commission has previously 

determined to be unfair or deceptive. Defendants’ violations are in connection with the 

deceptive and unlawful advertising, marketing, promotion, distribution, and selling of money-

making and investment opportunities. 

SUMMARY OF CASE 

2. Since at least 2018, Defendants, operating through a network of interconnected 

business entities as a common enterprise, have marketed a telemarketing sales training and 

coaching program and a variety of related products under a multitude of brand names, including 

the “Sales Mentor” program. Using online advertisements and telemarketing, Defendants have 

promoted this program as a highly lucrative money-making and investment opportunity. 

3. Defendants have employed a variety of unsubstantiated and false earnings claims 

to convey the impression that consumers who purchase the Sales Mentor program were likely to 

make substantial earnings and profits. They have convinced numerous consumers to spend 

hundreds or thousands of dollars each to purchase the program. In total, since 2019, consumers 

have paid Defendants more than $29 million for the Sales Mentor program. Defendants’ 

deceptive conduct has caused significant injury to many thousands of consumers across the 

country and violated the FTC Act and the TSR. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 

and 1345. 
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advertised, marketed, distributed, or sold money-making and investment opportunities to 

consumers throughout the United States. 

9. Defendant Evans and Welch, Inc. (“Evans and Welch”) is a Tennessee 

corporation with its principal place of business at 



 
  

   

      

      

  

 

       

    

  

   

    

    

  

 

  

    

 

 

       

         

  

       

    

directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of WE 

Capital, Traffic and Funnels, Evans and Welch, and EW Holdings, including the acts and 

practices set forth in this Complaint. Taylor A. Welch resides in this District and, in connection 

with the matters alleged herein, transacts or has transacted business in this District and 

throughout the United States. 

12. Defendant Christopher A. Evans is the co-Chief Executive Officer of Traffic 

and Funnels, WE Capital, and EW Holdings. Until at least June 2022, he was also the co-Chief 

Executive Officer and co-owner of Evans and Welch, and presently continues to be a co-owner of 

Evans and Welch. Evans directly participated in the development and dissemination of 

marketing materials and ads for the Sales Mentor program with knowledge that such materials 

included false or unsubstantiated earnings claims.  He has also presented in marketing videos for 
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office locations, and that have commingled funds. Because they have operated as a common 

enterprise, each of the Common Enterprise Corporate Defendants is liable for the acts and 

practices alleged below. 

COMMERCE 

16. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a substantial 

course of trade in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 



 
  

  

  

 

    

  

   

 

       

   

    

 

  

 

 

 

    

  

     

  

    

19. Defendants have represented that The Sales Mentor has “helped over 25,000 

people find secure, dependable, consistent and life-changing incomes,” and that consumers who 

purchase the Sales Mentor program would earn or were likely to earn between $10,000 and 

$20,000 per month on average. Defendants’ ads have included detailed statements about the 

amount of money, average sales commission amounts, average telemarketing closing rates, and 

average net income that purchasers of the Sales Mentor program have earned, would earn, or 

would likely earn. 

20. As detailed below, Defendants’ earnings and related claims have been false or 

unsubstantiated. 

21. From January 2019 to October 2022, Defendants have taken more than $29 

million from consumers who purchased their Sales Mentor program. 

The Sales Mentor Packages 

22. Through the sales process described below, Defendants have offered different 

levels of Sales Mentor program packages in tiered pricing, ranging from $97 for a training that 

gave access to a video library and a sales script (“Inbound Closer Accelerator” training), to a 

mid-range package priced at around $497 to $600 (“Inbound Closer Certification” training), to 

the highest-priced package offering “private” one-on-one training and coaching at around $8,800 

to $9,800 dollars (“Private Coaching”). 

23. The Private Coaching package also commonly included access to a weekly live 

group sales call and additional sales training videos. Many consumers have reported that the 

promised one-on-one “private” coaching never materialized and was never “private.” In some 

instances, purchasers of the Private Coaching package have also complained that much of the 

content or materials they received had been previously made available for free, or within one of 
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“hundreds” of business owners seeking to hire 





 
  

  
   

 
 

   

       

   

  
 

    
  

  

 
          

       

      

    

   
         

     
  

     
 

 
           

   

 
 

    
    

   
  

   
  

    
 

 

own schedule, using nothing but a cell connection. So I could earn 
a stable six-figure income on my own terms from anywhere I 
wanted. 

37. In another marketing video, captured in January 2022, Payton Welch states: 

“[L]ike I showed you before . . . I averaged about $30K [in commissions] per month. Plus, 

that’s only with ONE client.” He further states that: 

[A]nother 1,621 people—400 in this past week alone . . . 



 
  

     

  

   

  

  

   

      

      

  

    
 

  
   

 
  

  
 

   

 

 

    

 

 

 
    

  
 

    
 

   
  

40. Contrary to their earnings claims, Defendants have not tracked the earnings, 

income, commissions, net profits, or overall success achieved by purchasers of the Sales Mentor 

program. Consequently, Defendants’ widely used claims regarding the earnings that consumers 

who purchase their Sales Mentor program had made or were likely to make have been wholly 

unsubstantiated or false. 

Unsubstantiated or False Earnings Claims Made in Telemarketing Calls 

41. Defendants’ telemarketers have made similar false or unsubstantiated earnings 

claims in sales calls with consumers. For example, on an April 11, 2022 call between 

Defendants’ telemarketer and an FTC investigator posing as a consumer, the telemarketer stated: 

[L]et’s just say we can get you to a minimum of 20 percent close 
ratio, meaning every five calls you take, you close one out of 
five. . . . That’s pretty standard for people just getting into this for 
the beginning. It’s a lot less for untrained people. But when we 
train them, we get them for, like, 20/25 percent out the gate. . . . 
That means you’re making about $1,000 bucks a day, 5 grand a 
week, 20K a month. 

42. In a follow-up call on April 12, 2022, the telemarketer told the investigator: 

“You invest 9,800 bucks with me, and in three months, we’ll get you on track to make $120 

grand a year.” 

43. In a call made on September 6, 2022, between another of Defendants’ 



 
  

   
   

  
  

    



 
  

  
   

   
 

  

 
    

     

 

       

   

   

     

 

  

   

  
   

 
    

 

  

   

 

   

 

have all the training that you would have if you came into here. 
And guess what, I went on to literally break every record that this 
company has ever had, and I generated, in my first 12 months of 
sales, over $6 million. . . . The beauty about that is you come into 
this program, I’m your number one instructor. I’m your number 
one guy that you deal with. 

Defendants’ Earnings Claims Are Unsubstantiated or False 

46. The earnings and profits claims Defendants have used in the marketing of their 

Sales Mentor program have been unsubstantiated or false.  As noted above, Defendants have 

never systematically tracked the earnings results of purchasers of the Sales Mentor program. 

Therefore, they 0.004 Tw 0.72 0  C0.004 Tw [(U)6  ft, f 



 
  

   

 

    

 

  

   

  

 

     

  

    

  

 

 

   

  

  

  

  

   

 

misleading, or deceptive representations concerning the profits or earnings that may be 

anticipated by a participant in a money-making opportunity. 

50. As the letter 

www.ftc.gov/endorsement-notice-penalty-offenses
https://ftc.gov/MMO-notice


 
  

  

 

 

 

     

 

 



 
  

  

  

  

    

  

    

  

   

  

  

  

    

  

    

  

   

 

 

  

  

    

     

61. Defendants are “seller[s]” or “telemarketer[s]” engaged in “telemarketing” as 

defined by the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.2(dd), (ff), and (gg). 

62. Defendants’ goods and services, including Defendants’ 



 
  

 

   

     

   

   

    

  

    

   

  
 

  

 

 

    

 

    

  

    

  

 

  

Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57a(d)(3), a violation of the TSR constitutes an 

unfair or deceptive act or practice in or affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). Pursuant to Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, for the purpose of 

computing civil penalties, each and every instance that the Defendants violated the TSR, 

including each and every instance that Defendants used telemarketing to misrepresent any 

material aspect of the Sales Mentor product to a consumer, such as the product’s earning potential 

or profitability, constitutes an act or practice that violates the TSR. 

68. Defendants’ violations of the TSR set forth below were committed with the 

knowledge required by Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the FTC Act, U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A). 

Count II—TSR Violations 
(All Defendants) 

69. In numerous instances, in connection with telemarketing, Defendants have 

misrepresented, directly or by implication, material aspects of investment opportunities, 

including, but not limited to, the risk, liquidity, earnings potential, or profitability of Defendants’ 

Sales Mentor program, such as the claim that consumers will earn or are likely to earn substantial 

income, such as an average of $10,000 to $20,000 per month. 

70. Defendants’ acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 69, violate the TSR 

prohibition on misrepresenting any material aspect of an investment opportunity, 16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.3(a)(2)(vi). 

71. Defendants’ acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 69, also violate the TSR 

prohibition on misrepresenting any material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature, or central 

characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of a sales offer, 16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.3(a)(2)(iii). 
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72. Defendants’ acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 69, also violate the TSR 

prohibition on making a false or misleading statement to induce any person to pay for goods or 

services, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(4). 

VIOLATIONS OF PRIOR COMMISSION DETERMINATIONS 
CONCERNING UNFAIR OR DECEPTIVE ACTS OR PRACTICES IN COMMERCE 

73. Pursuant to Section 5(m)(1)(B) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(B), if the 

Commission has determined in a proceeding under section 5(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 45(b), that an act or practice is unfair or deceptive and issued a final cease and desist order, 

other than a consent order, with respect to the act or practice, then a person, partnership, or 

corporation that engages in such act or practice with actual knowledge that such act or practice is 

unfair or deceptive and is unlawful under Section 5(a)(1) of the FTC Act shall be liable under the 

FTC Act for such relief as may be appropriate. 

74. In prior litigated decisions the Commission has determined that the acts or 

practices described in Paragraphs 22 to 47 above are unfair or deceptive and violate Section 

5(a)(1) of the FTC Act and issued final cease and desist orders, other than consent orders, with 

respect to those acts or practices. 

Count III—Violations of Prior Commission Determinations Known to Defendants 
(Traffic and Funnels, WE Capital, Evans and Welch, and EW Holdings) 

75. As set forth in Paragraphs 48 to 53, at least since receiving the letter and Notices, 

Common Enterprise Corporate Defendants had actual knowledge that, in connection with the 





 
  

       
 
 

                                                    
       

mailto:fkern@ftc.gov
mailto:vrosa@ftc.gov


without knowledge, or with only limited knowledge, of the actual profits or 
earnings usually and ordinarily received by participants.4 

d. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, 
that participants will or are likely to earn any specific amount or percentage.5 

e. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, 
that the represented profits or earnings are the ordinary, typical, or average profits 
or earnings made by participants.6  This includes by means of the representation 
of an earnings figure or the attribution of earnings figures to specific participants, 
both of which impliedly represent that such figures are likely, are earned by a 
substantial number of participants, or are the typical, ordinary, or average results, 
absent clear and conspicuous disclosure of the relevant context, such as the time 
and effort actually expended by participants who made the amount represented, 
the percentage of participants making the amount represented, and the amount 
typically and ordinarily made by participants.7 

f. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent the profits or earnings 
t y p i c o r   T c  s 2 2 e 8  5 1 0 . 1 7 9 9  6 5 9 . 8 8  T m 
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3. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
prospective participants will be screened or evaluated for suitability to use or benefit 
from the money-making opportunity.10 

4. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
participants do not need experience in order to earn income.11 

5. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that a 
prospective participant must act immediately to purchase or to be considered for a 
money-making opportunity.12 

6. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
purchasing a money-making opportunity is risk-free or involves little risk.13 

7. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, the 
position being offered to prospective participants in a money-making opportunity, such as 
by failing to disclose that it is a sales position when such is the case.14 

8. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, the 

https://opportunity.15
https://opportunity.12
https://income.11
https://opportunity.10
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without knowledge, or with only limited knowledge, of the actual profits or 
earnings usually and ordinarily received by participants.4 

d. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, 
that participants will or are likely to earn any specific amount or percentage.5 

e. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, 
that the represented profits or earnings are the ordinary, typical, or average profits 
or earnings made by participants.6  This includes by means of the representation 
of an earnings figure or the attribution of earnings figures to specific participants, 
both of which impliedly represent that such figures are likely, are earned by a 
substantial number of participants, or are the typical, ordinary, or average results, 
absent clear and conspicuous disclosure of the relevant context, such as the time 
and effort actually expended by participants who made the amount represented, 
the percentage of participants making the amount represented, and the amount 
typically and ordinarily made by participants.7 

f. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent the profits or earnings 
that may be anticipated by a prospective participant by failing to disclose 
conditions or limitations affecting such income, such as expenses to be borne by 
the participant.8 

2. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
sales of a money-making opportunity will be made to only a limited number of 
prospective participants (including, for example, that sales will be made to only a limited 
number of prospective participants in a geographic region), when sales will be made to 
any person who is willing and able to pay.9 

4 Von Schrader Mfg. Co., 33 FTC 58, 63-66 (1941).
5 Encyclopaedia Britannica, 87 FTC 421, 450, 486-87, 505, 510, 531-32 (1976); National 
Dynamics, 82 FTC 488, 511-13, 543, 564, 568 (1973), as modified at 85 FTC 1052, 1059-61 
(1975); Holiday Magic, 84 FTC 748, 948, 984, 1032-1034, 1065, 1069 (1974); Universal Credit, 
82 FTC 570, 592, 594-95, 632-33, 668-70 (1973); Universal Elec., 78 FTC 265, 272-74, 294, 
297 (1971); Windsor, 77 FTC 204, 214-17, 220-21, 223 (1970).
6 Macmillan, 96 FTC 208, 232, 235-36, 245-46, 254-55, 301-02, 325-29, 331 (1980); National 
Dynamics, 82 FTC 488, 511-13, 543-44, 564, 568 (1973), as modified at 85 FTC 1052, 1059 
(1975); Abel Allan Goodman, 52 FTC 982, 984, 987-88, 991-92, 996-97 (1956), order affirmed 
244 F.2d 584 (2d Cir. 1957); Washington Mushroom, 53 FTC 368, 370, 376, 379-380, 383-84, 
386 (1956); Von Schrader, 33 FTC 58, 63-66 (1941).
7 Macmillan, 96 FTC 208, 232, 301-02, 326-29, 331 (1980); 



3. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
prospective participants will be screened or evaluated for suitability to use or benefit 
from the money-making opportunity.10 

4. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
participants do not need experience in order to earn income.11 

5. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that a 
prospective participant must act immediately to purchase or to be considered for a 
money-making opportunity.12 

6. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, that 
purchasing a money-making opportunity is risk-free or involves little risk.13 

7. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, the 
position being offered to prospective participants in a money-making opportunity, such as 
by failing to disclose that it is a sales position when such is the case.14 

8. It is an unfair or deceptive trade practice to misrepresent, explicitly or implicitly, the 
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